
1

Salford Civic Centre
SWINTON

MEETING OF COUNCIL

Dear City Mayor and Councillors,

You are invited to attend the Meeting of Council to be held as follows for the 
transaction of the business indicated: -

DATE: Wednesday, 19 December 2018

TIME: 9.30 am

PLACE: Council Chamber, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

Councillors are requested to ensure that their electronic equipment is on silent 
during Council meetings. Approval is given to officers and councillors to use 
social media during the business of council, subject to the protocol and social 
media policy.

A G E N D A

1  Any announcements or special business (including the 
submission of any urgent  business) introduced by the 
Chair. 

2  Apologies for absence 

3  Declaration of Interests 

Disclosure by Members of “Disclosable Pecuniary Interests” 

Public Document Pack



2

(as defined by The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012), and Members’ “Personal 
Interests” in accordance with paragraph 12.1 of Salford City 
Council’s Code of Conduct for Members.   

4  Salford City Council Electoral Review Warding Patterns - 
Supplemental Response 

(Pages 1 - 12)



3

Notes for Elected Members and Members of the Public

(a) Addressing the Ceremonial Mayor during Council Meetings 

During Council meetings the City Mayor, Elected Members, Officers and members of 
the public shall address the Ceremonial Mayor as “Chair” when speaking at the 
Council meeting. 

(b) Points of Order and Personal Explanations

a) If a Member or Officer stands on a point of order or to give a personal 
explanation:

 the Member shall be heard immediately, and
 any Member or Officer speaking shall sit down.

b) A point of order shall relate only to an alleged irregularity in the constitution or 
conduct of the meeting, and the Member or Officer shall immediately give details of the 
allegation (if possible, identifying any Standing Order or statute considered to have 
been broken).

c) A personal explanation shall only be to clear a misunderstanding of something 
said by the Member or Officer. 

d) The ruling of the Chair on a point of order or a personal explanation shall be at 
his or her discretion.

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014’, 
the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record this meeting.

Miranda Carruthers-Watt
Monitoring Officer 



This page is intentionally left blank



                                       ITEM NO.

REPORT OF 
THE DEPUTY CITY MAYOR

TO
COUNCIL

19 DECEMBER 2018

TITLE:  Boundary Review - Supplemental Response

RECOMMENDATION

Council is asked to endorse the draft Supplemental Response to the Warding Pattern 
recommended by the LGBCE.  

EXECTIVE SUMMARY

This report suggests a Supplemental Response to the Warding Pattern for Salford 
that has been recommended by the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England (LGBCE).   If agreed, the submission will form the Council’s formal response 
to the current stage of consultation to the Commission’s proposals for Salford’s 
warding pattern. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

Report to Council, 29 August 2018, “Boundary Review – Warding Pattern’
LGBCE Draft recommendations report for Salford City Council, 6 November 2018, 
www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/north-west/greater-manchester/salford

1. BACKGROUND

1.1. The Local Government Boundary Commission for England’s (LGBCE) review 
of Salford’s electoral arrangements started in early 2018 with all out elections 
due to take place in 2020.

1.2. We are now in the third phase of the review.  

 In June 2018 the LGBCE confirmed that it was minded to recommend 
that the Council should continue to have 60 Councillors.  Given that, 
where an authority elects by thirds LGBCE usually aim to agree a pattern 
of three Councillors per ward, this will result in Salford retaining 20 wards.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

http://www.lgbce.org.uk/all-reviews/north-west/greater-manchester/salford


 On 6 November 2018, the LGBCE published its Draft Recommendations 
Report for Salford City Council, in which it set out a proposed warding 
pattern. 

 The LGBCE is now consulting on its draft recommendations.  The LGBCE 
is seeking comments and opinions on its proposals.  This stage of 
consultation closes on 14 January 2019. 

If there is strong evidence against the proposals then the LGBCE may 
alter their recommendations. If these alterations are significant and the 
LGBCE lacks sufficient evidence of local opinion on these alterations, it 
will then reopen consultation on revised draft recommendations.  In cases 
where additional consultation is required it is often limited to a specific 
geographical area of the local authority. 

2. Warding Patterns Supplemental Submission

2.1 A draft Supplemental Submission is attached to this report.  

2.2 This submission broadly supports the recommendations published by the 
Boundary Commission, noting that the proposals go a long way to providing 
for electoral equality, that the ward boundaries proposed are generally 
identifiable and clearly distinct, and that generally local community identity is 
recognised within the proposed warding pattern.

2.3 There are two specific areas on which it is proposed to respond to the 
LGBCE.

 Barton & Winton / Worsley & Westwood Park:  The Council originally 
proposed the area bounded by Parrin Lane (to the north), the M602 (to 
the south) and the canal (to the east) should fall within the proposed 
Barton and Winton ward.    Alternatively, the LGBCE have proposed this 
area is located within the proposed Worsley and Westwood Park.  

Local community identity and connections would support this area falling 
within the proposed Barton and Winton ward, and this forms the basis of 
the evidence in the Supplemental Submission.   

 Broughton / Kersal & Broughton Park:  the LGBCE supported a boundary 
defined by Bury New Road, Wellington Street East and Welbeck Grove, 
meeting with Leicester Roard and Broom Lane, before meeting the city 
limit. 

It is suggested this boundary is not clear and distinct. Alternatively, a 
revised boundary is proposed.  Running from east to west, this revised 
boundary would run west along Dudley Street, before then turning north 
following Great Cheetham Street East.  At Mandley Park the boundary 
would then run west along Bristol Street, then north along Leicester Road 
to its junction with Northumberland Avenue.  From this point the 
boundary would follow the existing ward boundary west to the junction 
with Bury New Road.  At this point it would again deviate from the 
existing boundary and head south before once again turning west along 

Page 2



Knoll Street.  Finally, the proposed boundary heads north along Great 
Clowes Street before joining with the existing ward boundary and 
heading west to the River Irwell. 

This revised proposal forms a clearer and more distinct boundary than 
that proposed by the LGBCE.  It also provides for better electoral equality 
between the two areas and reflects local community connections and 
identity. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

Salford City Council’s Constitution, City Mayor’s Scheme of Delegation

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  The ability of councillors 
to represent the residents of their ward effectively will be affected by the number of 
people they represent and the cohesion of the communities served.  Changes to 
ward size and boundaries along with the number of councillors covering each ward 
will positively or negatively impact on that effectiveness.  

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  N/A

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  N/A

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:   Service Reform 

CONTACT OFFICER: 

Jacquie Russell Assistant Director Strategy TEL NO: 0161 793 3577
Neil Watts Electoral Services Manager TEL NO: 0161 793 3446

Wards to which this relates: All

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Electoral review of Salford City 
Council

Supplemental Response to the
Local Government Boundary Commission for
England’s proposals on Warding Patterns 

December 2018

Page 5



2

1 Background

1.1 The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) review of 
Salford’s council size started in 2018, with all out elections due to take place 
in 2020.

1.2 On 6 November the LGBCE published its proposed warding patterns scheme 
for Salford.  This reflected previous recommendations that the Council should 
continue to have 60 Councillors, and a warding pattern based on the Council 
retaining 20 wards.  A further period of consultation on the LGBCE’s 
proposals now runs from 6 November to 14 January 2019.

1.3 This supplemental submission is Salford City Council’s response to the 
LGBCE’s warding pattern proposals.   

2 Proposals

2.1 Salford Council is in general content with the warding pattern proposed by the 
LGBCE.    It is acknowledged that the proposed warding pattern would 
provide for a good level of electorate equality across the city.  The proposed 
warding pattern generally provides for clear and identifiable boundaries that 
also represent and support the connections within and between communities 
across the city.  

2.2 There are two specific areas where we would ask the LGBCE to reconsider its 
proposals – first, the boundary between Broughton and Kersal, and second, 
the boundary between Barton and Winton and Worsley and Westwood Park.

Broughton / Kersal and Broughton Park

The Council does not accept the LGBCE’s proposals for the boundary 
between Broughton and Kersal and Broughton Park wards.  A revised 
boundary between the two wards is proposed.   

The new boundary, running from east to west, would run west along Dudley 
Street, before then turning north following Great Cheetham Street East.  At 
Mandley Park the boundary would then run west along Bristol Street, then 
north along Leicester Road to its junction with Northumberland Avenue.  From 
this point the boundary would follow the existing ward boundary west to the 
junction with Bury New Road.  At this point it would again deviate from the 
existing boundary and head south before once again turning west along Knoll 
Street.  Finally, the proposed boundary heads north along Great Clowes 
Street before joining with the existing ward boundary and heading west to the 
River Irwell.  This revised boundary is illustrated in Appendices A and B. 

This revised boundary creates a clearer and more distinct boundary between 
the two wards.  Northumberland Avenue provides a clearer distinction in this 
part of the city than does Welbeck Grove and Wellington Street East.  The 
boundary is one of long standing and that is locally recognised.  Many of the 
residential properties to either side of the proposed border are very similar, 

Page 6



3

but it continues to be the Council’s view that this option is most appropriate in 
terms of community connectedness.
 
This revised proposal also creates greater electorate equality than the LGBCE 
proposal.  The revised electorate and variances for the two wards would be:

Broughton: forecast electorate 9,600 (-5.18% variance)
Kersal & Broughton Park:  forecast electorate 9,620 (-4.98% variance)

This revised proposal ensures that electors in Bristol Street, Heaton Street, 
Symons Street, Gainsborough Street and Norton Street remain connected to 
the Broughton Ward, with access from Leicester Road.    Access to the area 
east of Mandley Park, and defined by Cheetham Street East, Dudley Street 
and the city limits, is via Tetlow Lane and the George Street estate.  
Residents in this area use Great Cheetham Street for shopping, children in 
the area attend St Thomas School and Marlborough Street School, and 
families worship aat both St Thomas and St James Churches.  A small 
number of Jewish families have now moved into the Marsland Street area and 
children attend Bnos Yisroel School and other Jewish schools in Kersal.   
Families also use Kersal Synagogues, and are very much a part of the wider 
Kersal community. 

Mandley Park is the only green space in this part of the city, and is widely 
used by residents in both the Tetlow Lane and George Street estates and the 
Marsland Street area.  The Park is a space that unites rather than physically 
divides the community. 

Barton & Winton / Worsley & Westwood Park

The Council continues to believe its original proposal better reflects the 
communities in this area of the city.  Our proposal is to revert to the 
boundaries proposed in the Council’s Warding Pattern submission.

Specifically, the area bounded by Parrin Lane (to the north), the M602 (to the 
south) and the canal (to the east) would fall within the Barton and Winton 
ward.  Revised ward boundaries for Barton and Winton and for Worsley and 
Westwood Park are illustrated in the maps attached at Appendix C and D.

Taken together with other elements of the LGBCE’s proposals for these 
wards, this revised boundary would create greater electoral equality between 
the two wards than those proposed by the LGBCE.  The revised electorate 
and variances would be:

Barton and Winton:  forecast electorate 10,243 (1.19% variance)
Worsley and Westwood Park: forecast electorate 9,722 (-3.96% variance)  

The LGBCE have argued that the M602 motorway is a more distinct 
geographic boundary than Parrin Lane and better reflects the local community 
connections. This is not accepted.  

Page 7



4

Westwood and Alder Park are both social housing estates. The communities 
in these estates are serviced by Westwood Park and Alder Brook Schools and 
Mary Magdalene Church. They also have two active community centres on 
the estate Mary Magdalene’s and Westwood Community Centre’s, both of 
which have youth clubs and activities for residents.  The active residents 
associations work together on local events such as fundraising for Christmas 
lights and the Winton festival.  

The Westwood and Alder Park Tenants and Residents Association (in their 
submission to the LGBCE) opposed any changes that would impact on the 
identity of the ‘active and cohesive community’ and argued in favour of 
continued association with Winton Ward.    A boundary at Parrin Lane would 
respect this community identity and the long-standing relationship with 
Winton, keeping both in-tact.   

The construction of the motorway initially divided the local community in 
Winton.  The local post office and library were focal points for community 
meetings and events.  The local library offers activities for older people that 
continue to be used by the community in the Parrin Lane area.  Similarly the 
Children’s Centre is well used by families in the Parrin Lane area.   A tunnel 
was built between Weymouth Road (in the Gee Lane area) and Trevor Road 
to enable residents to continue to use local schools, at Beech Street, St 
Gilberts and St Patricks, as well as to worship at St Matthews Church, and to 
continue to access local shopping facilities. Connections across the motorway 
have continued, and it does not act as a physical barrier in the way assumed 
by the LGBCE.

Page 8



P
age 9



P
age 10



P
age 11



P
age 12


	Agenda
	4 Salford City Council Electoral Review Warding Patterns - Supplemental Response
	04ii Appx A Supplemental Response
	04iii Appx B Broughton/Kersal & Broughton Park Wards
	04iv Appx C Barton & Winton/Worsley & Westwod Park Wards


